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e Director’s Statement
B

of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Bestway
nal Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
ely referred to as the “Group”), | am pleased to present
e annual report of the Company and the Group for the year
d 31 March 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW
pital reorganization

suant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
pany at a special general meeting held on 8 December 2011,
each authorised ordinary share and preference share of HK$0.1
were subdivided into 10 ordinary shares and 10 preference shares of
HK$0.01 each, respectively. Furthermore, the issued share capital was
reduced by canceling paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on each
ordinary share of HK$0.1. The credit arising from capital reduction was
transferred to share premium account. The capital reorganisation gave
greater flexibility to the Company to raise fund through the issue of
new shares in the future since the Company is not permitted to issue
new shares below par value under the laws of Bermuda and its Bye-
laws.

r Trading of goods

The Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,384,000 (2011: HK$1,855,000)
which represented decrease in turnover of approximately 25% over
the corresponding last year. Gross profit margin had decreased to

‘i 5.13% (2011: 5.44%). A decrease of revenue and gross profit margin
were mainly due to the absence of PVC film trading income. The loss
attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$4,872,000 (2011:
HK$204,682,000. The Group's basic loss per share for the year was
HK$0.17 cents (2011: HK$9.43 cents).
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Executive Director’s Statement

HITESHES

Mining Business

During the year ended 31 March 2012, there was no active operation
of the Group’s mining business. In order to obtain a more reliable
estimation for the development of the Mongolian tungsten resources,
the management has intended to engage a qualified mineral technical
adviser to obtain a resource estimation based on international
reporting standards, which is in line with the requirements under
chapter 18 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and to provide further
assistance in the design of the exploration programs in respect of the
tungsten mines. The management was given to understand that the
additional exploration work for the purpose of the resource estimation
will include re-drilling and re-sampling. Considering the addition work
to be done as described above, the estimated time required to obtain
a technical report on the tungsten mines and the relevant fundraising
activities of the Company, the expected production schedule will not
commence within the next 12 months. In this respect, the Group
will continue to renew the mining licences and comply with the
requirements of the Law on Mineral Resources of Mongolia.

In May 2012, the Company appointed a qualified technical adviser
to advise on the estimated time frame for obtaining a resource
estimation and to prepare a technical report on the tungsten mines
based on international reporting standards. Details of the time frame
of production of the tungsten mines will be provided as soon as it is
available.

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

On 16 April 2012, the Company successfully completed a placing of
500,000,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.05 per placing shares
with net proceeds of approximately HK$24,400,000 to strengthen the
working capital of the Group. Details of the placing were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement on 26 March 2012 and 16 April 2012
respectively.

RIERTE

REBEE—_E——F=A=+—HIEFE
ErHRBEBFILEIREY - BREHR =
HIEERCERA GG BEERZES SR
ERNMERBRETEESHERZMABMRAAE
F EMHRANE18E ZHE 2 BIR R EEAEEE
BAGEET W AB BSE 2 MR BIRaH R At —
B BIRE T I AMBRIAT 25BN
THEHEEENEBERRENRERR KEE
i A% HETT 2 BN T AE - B1S B B A5 TE 2 B lg i
iz s R AR B 2 BBEEEEE) 7857
FEFEBITERRE T @A RNHERE - BLUL M
EALERBEEEERBET IR TETS

BEERED ZHE -

R-ZFB-——F0A ARAZEAERKMERM

AESE R 2 At R EERERHE R RBE ”1
ERBEENRAEEBSBEIRMEE - KB
EERREERFBERASERREMR-

ARRETEI R AT =

R-ZE——FWA+ B ARRKDTKIZE
% Bt & B £70.0578 7T 2 B A& Bl & 500,000,000 A% 37
B AT B F 28 4) 524,400,000 JT LA 18 58
AEECEEES BRREZFBEERARAA
B AE-E——F=A=-+~"BER=Z—=
FUA+NBZABRIFE-

HRERERERAT —T——#43% §



Director’s Statement
e
H B8

, the directors of the Company expect that the operating
in the trading of goods will be challenging as the
ecovery of the world’s economy is still uncertain. In order

future challenges and staying competitive, the Group will
w customers in order to improve the profit margins for the
oreover, we will keep on monitoring the development
ing business and will endeavor to further explore the mining
iness in order to contribute a return in the future.

he purpose of sustaining long term growth and maximising the
holders’ wealth, the directors will continue to explore all potential
tunities to broaden the Group’s income and development.

APPRECIATION

| would like to extend my gratitude to the members of the Board, our
rhanagement team and staffs for their loyalty and dedication during
the past year. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to convey our
most sincere appreciation of the staunch support to our Group from all
of our customers and suppliers and during the year.

By order of the Board

Chim Kim Lun Ricky
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE D

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
approximately of HK$1,384,000 and the administrative expenses for
the year ended 31 March 2012 were approximately of HK$4,155,000,
which represented an increase of 2.77% compared to the
administrative expenses incurred in last year.

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2012 was HK$4,872,000, as compared to a loss
HK$204,682,000 in the previous year. It was mainly due to the absence
of the impairment recognition of mining rights of HK$265,473,000 in
the last year.

CURRENT AND GEARING RATIOS

As at 31 March 2012, the Group's bank balances and cash amounted
to HK$1,792,000 (as at 31 March 2011: HK$6,331,000). The Group’s
net assets value amounted to approximately of HK$553,954,000 (as at
31 March 2011: HK$558,948,000) with total assets approximately of
HK$741,939,000 (as at 31 March 2011: HK$746,857,000). Net current
liabilities were approximately of HK$20,544,000 (as at 31 March 2011:
net current assets of HK$3,267,000). The current ratio was 0.15 times
(as at 31 March 2011: 1.68 times) and gearing ratio was 0.25 (as at 31
March 2011: 0.25) represented on the basis of total liabilities over total
assets.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2012, the Group pledged bank deposit of HK$869,000

(as at 31 March 2011: HK$1,262,000) to secure a short-term banking
facilities of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (as at 31 March 2011: Nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group did not have any significant exposure to and did not hedge
against risks associated with foreign currency fluctuation.
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2012, the Group had approximately 15 full time
administrative employees (2011: 18). The Group
itive remuneration packages to its employees based on
industry practice. Compensation policies are reviewed
designed to reward and motivate productivity and

ENDS

ctors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
of the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chim Kim Lun Ricky, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in September 2007. Mr. Chim graduated from
the University of British Columbia in Canada with a bachelor’s degree
in Arts. Mr. Chim has over 15 years of commercial and industrial
experience and of experience in investment. Mr. Chim was an executive
director of Yueshou Environmental Holdings Limited (stock code: 1191)
for a period from May 2007 to November 2009, Bel Global Resources
Holdings Limited (stock code: 761) for a period from April 2007 to
November 2008, Hengli Commercial Properties (Group) Limited (stock
code: 169) for a period from June 2007 to December 2008 and
Huscoke Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 704) for a period
from September 2007 to September 2010. Also, he was a chairman,
executive director and managing director of Karce International
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 1159) for a period from
August 2007 to April 2009. Mr. Chim currently is a chairman and
executive director of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (stock code:
899). These companies are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Law Fei Shing, aged 52, was appointed as an executive director
and company secretary of the Company in January 2009. Mr. Law is
a Practising Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He is also a
member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA),
USA and associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). Mr. Law has over 22 years of experience
in the audit and accounting services. Mr. Law was an executive
director (from August 2004 to December 2011), the company secretary
(from August 2004 to May 2011) and the chief executive officer
(from November 2007 to December 2011) of Energy International
Investments Holdings Limited (stock code: 353) a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Currently, Mr. Law is an
executive director and company secretary of China Boon Holdings
Limited (stock code: 922) which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au Kwok Yee Benjamin, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2004. He graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in
1991 and obtained a postgraduate certificate in laws in 1992. He is
currently the Principal solicitor of Messrs. Benjamin Au & Billy Chan
Solicitors. He has over 16 years of experience in commercial and
corporate matters, civil and criminal litigations, intellectual property,
commercial documents drafting and advice and employment matters
and appeals. Mr. Au was an independent non-executive director of
Anhui Tianda Oil Pipe Company Limited for a period from April 2009
to April 2011 (stock code: 839) which is listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.
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phical Details of Directors
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au Siu Ngor, aged 48, was appointed as independent non-
ive director of the Company in September 2009. She received
r degree in Business Administration from Lancaster University
of the United Kingdom in 1995 and a Bachelor degree of Science
(Honours) in Computer Studies from the City University of Hong
Kong in 1993. She is a fellow member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (CIMA) of the United Kingdom and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
HKICPA). She had previously assumed the positions of financial
ontroller and accountant in various companies and has extensive
xperience in financial industry. Currently, she is an independent non-
executive director of China Boon Holdings Limited (stock code: 922)
which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lum Pak Sum, aged 51, was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2010. He holds a master
degree in business administration from the University of Warwick,
United Kingdom and a LLB (Honours) degree from the University of
Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. He is currently a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr.
Lum was an independent non-executive director of Grand Field Group

e Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) for a period from July 2004 to May
2008, KH Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 8172) for a period
from September 2005 to December 2008, Heng Xin China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8046) for a period from June 2007 to November
2008 and Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (stock
code: 353) for a period from September 2005 to June 2011. Currently,
he is an independent non-executive director of Waytung Global Group
Limited (stock code: 21), Karce International Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 1159), Radford Capital Investment Limited (stock
code: 901) and Asia Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 899).
These companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
trading cotton yarn. The principal activities of the Group are the
mining business.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group affairs as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 80. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of
the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/ reclassified as appropriate. This summary does not form a
part of the audited financial statements.
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‘Directors

£
Years ended 31 March
HE=A=1+-ALEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
—g-=f -T-——% -2-TF -“2TTAF "BI\F
FHT TR THR THR TR
(®5)
Wz 1,384 1,855 14,165 16,966 12,709
BRAAT (B1E),
i ) (4,872) (271,050) 1,514 (3,744) (2,761)
IR - 66,368 - - 720
ss)/Profit for the year from  REFELEEBL 2
continuing operations FE (5B,
i 7 (4,872) (204,682) 1,514 (3,744) (2,041)
| (Loss)/Profit for the year from KB DR IFEEETK
discontinued operations Z2EE (BB
Yis ) - - 2,006 6,955 (21,374)
~ (Loss)/Profit for the year FE(ER) T (4,872)  (204,682) 3,520 3,211 (23,415)
Attributable to : FEAG
Owners of the Company KRABHEB A (4,872) (204,682) 3,520 3,286 (21,001)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R = - - - (75) (2,414)
(4,872) (204,682) 3,520 3,211 (23,415)
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

EE -BERFERE

At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——%F —T—ZF
FET FET FET
Property, plant and equipment #1% /5 &% 208 314 345
Prepaid land lease payments  JEft i & 7 A - = =
Long term receivables/Long REVEWAR
term investments RHRE - - -
Exploration and evaluation MR LA EE
assets 2,546 2,837 863
Mining rights HERE 735,657 735,657 1,001,130
Current assets RBEE 3,528 8,049 16,735
Total assets BEE 741,939 746,857 1,019,073 168,865 187,453
Current liabilities mBEE (24,072) (4,782) (6,751) (76,362) (87,745)
Long-term liabilities: RHIBE:
Long term portion of FTERITREAM
interest-bearing bank and B8z K
other borrowings ik - - - = (11,389)
Promissory notes HH R - (19,214) (18,607) = =
Deferred tax liabilities FEHEEE (163,913) (163,913) (230,281) = =
Total liabilities LEE (187,985) (187,909) (255,639) (76,362) (99,134)
Non-controlling interests FEE I = - - - = (2,021)
553,954 558,948 763,434 92,503 86,298

BRERERERAT —T——a4®m 13



of the Directors

&

D ASSETS

_ f movements in fixed assets of Group during the year are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
ear, together with the reasons, are set out in note 23 to the financial
tatements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donations during the year (2011: Nil).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of event after the reporting date are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

Details of the convertible preference shares are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

1 4 Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2012, the Company had no retained profits available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company’s contributed surplus
of HK$159,393,000 is currently not available for distribution. The
Company's share premium account in the amount of HK$714,069,000
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, 100% of the Group’s purchases were attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers with the largest supplier accounting
for 63% of the Group’s purchases. 100% of the Group’s sales were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers with the largest
customer accounting for 100% of the Group’s sales.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers. The Group's
concentration of credit risk on trade receivables as at 31 March 2012
is mainly from one customer which accounted for 100% of trade
receivables mainly from Hong Kong. The Group has closely monitored
the recoverability of trade receivables and taken effective measures to
ensure timely collection of outstanding balances.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chim Kim Lun Ricky
Mr. Law Fei Shing
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of the Directors

&

:CTORS (continued)
ndent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Au Kwok Yee Benjamin
Ms. Lau Siu Ngor
Mr. Lum Pak Sum

n accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chim
im Lun Ricky and Ms. Lau Siu Ngor will retire from office and, being
ligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors had made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The Company considered
that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
The Director’s biographical information are set out on pages 9 to 10.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at annual
general meeting with reference to the recommendation of the Group's
remuneration committee. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and results of the Group.

Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No other contract of significance to which the Company or a subsidiary
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest subsisted at the year end date or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENT

Particulars of the pension scheme arrangements are set out in note 4
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2012, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company and their associates had any interests or short positions
in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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NTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
ORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
LYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

arch 2012, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
e capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
quired to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
O:

ng position of substantial shareholders in the
res of the Company

FERRRAERQXTRED REERKRD
ZREERER

RZE——FZA=Z+—H BAQRGIRIEE?
FEEGEHIE36IKFE 2 Bm s MmE - #E
NN F B EITIRARS%EL A S 2 BRI E S
T

FTERRREQARDZRAE

% of issued

Number of ordinary share
ordinary capital
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held (Note 1)
- HERTEER
BRREE 54 FEELBEREE BABEDH (M)
Skill Trade Investments Limited Beneficial Owner 926,666,666 28.66%
EnEAA (Note 2)
(FF5E2)
Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan Interest of Controlled Corporation 926,666,666 28.66%
SmXEE ZIEHER 2 R (Note 2)
(Mg3E2)
Global Grand Resources Corporation Beneficial Owner 601,000,000 18.59%
EmEA A (Note 3)
(P7E3)
!‘ Mr. Sun Tak Keung Interest of Controlled Corporation 601,000,000 18.59%
‘ FEmELE RIRGEE KR (Note 3)
(FF3E3)
Mr. Chen Yigiu Beneficial Owner 340,000,000 10.51%
PR 2 P 58 4 E=mEA A

18 Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Notes:

The percentages are calculated based on the total number of ordinary
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2012, which was
3,233,562,180.

Skill Trade Investments Limited is a company incorporated under the
laws of the British Virgin Islands, the entired issued share capital of
which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Mung Bun Man, Alan
therefore deemed to be interested in 926,666,666 ordinary shares held
by Skill Trade Investments Limited.

Global Grand Resources Corporation is a company incorporated under
the laws of the British Virgin Islands, the entired issued share capital of
which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Sun Tak Keung. Mr. Sun
Tak Keung therefore deemed to be interested in 601,000,000 ordinary
shares held by Global Grand Resources Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
March 2012, no other person had an interest or short position in
the Company’s shares or underlying shares which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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PTION SCHEME

option scheme for the employees and executive directors
pany and its subsidiaries which was adopted at a special
ting of the shareholders of the Company held on 13
tember 1995 was terminated at the annual general meeting of
e Company held on 19 August 2003. At the same annual general
eeting, a new share option scheme, details of which appeared
a circular of the Company to shareholders of 25 July 2003, was

5 September 2006, the Company had granted 281,000,000 share
options to directors and employees at exercise price of HK$0.035
per share. On 14 December 2006, the Company passed a resolution
of capital reorganisation by the shareholders at the special general

i meeting involving:

- the capital reduction involves a reduction in the nominal value
of each existing share in issue of HK$0.01 to HK$0.005;

- the share consolidation would be implemented whereby 20
existing shares of HK$0.005 each in the issued or unissued
share capital of the Company resulting from the capital
reduction would be consolidated into one consolidated Share of
HK$0.10.

As a result, the share options exercise price need to be consolidated at
HK$0.70 per share and the number of share options granted need to
be consolidated to 14,050,000 share options on 15 December 2006.

All the share options granted were expired and no outstanding share
options remained for the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March
2011.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no transactions required to be disclosed
as related party and connected transactions in accordance with
requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company or their respective associates
was interested in, apart from the Group's businesses, any business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has compiled with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Codes”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the accounting period
covered by the annual report, except for certain deviations, please refer
to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 23 to 31 of the annual
report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.
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e Directors

MITTEE

has an Audit Committee which was established in
ith the CG Codes in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s
ing process and internal controls. The Group's audited
atements for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been
by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee comprises
independent non-executive Directors of the Company and meets
t twice annually to perform their duties.

e financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012 have been
'Idited by Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire
the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Chim Kim Lun Ricky
Executive Director

Hong Kong
22 June 2012
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Corporate Governance Report
“ﬁ=¢k$ﬁdh

The Board of the Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to the principle of
corporate governance with emphasis on transparency, independence,
accountability and responsibility. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
has issued Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
of the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”) relating to “The Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Codes”)” for the listed
company to comply with. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company
has complied with CG Codes throughout the year, except for the
certain deviations from the CG Codes which are explained in the
following paragraphs.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions, financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.
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D (continued)
ion
rrently comprises the following Directors:
ive Directors

Chim Kim Lun Ricky
w Fei Shing

endent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Au Kwok Yee Benjamin
Ms. Lau Siu Ngor
r. Lum Pak Sum

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this annual report are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors”
section on pages 9 to 10 of this annual report. None of the Directors
has any financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory
matters. There is a procedure to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the expense of the Company in order to discharge of
their duties.

Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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TEERKRE

THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (Continued)

During the year, 2 regular and 2 irregular Board meetings were held.
The Directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda if
necessary. Agenda and accompanying Board papers in respect of
Board meetings are sent out in full to all Directors within reasonable
time before the meeting. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and record in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decision
reached and sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively within a reasonable time after the Board meeting was
held.

All Directors have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information on a timely manner, which enable
the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All the independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
been appointed for a specific terms and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors to the Board and all Directors should
be subject to re-election at regular intervals. Upon the resignation of a
Director, we made an announcement publicly and explain the reasons
for the resignation.
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&

ARD (continued)
rs’ attendance records

of full Board Meetings and Committee Meetings attended
each Director during the year under review is set out in the
ollowing table. Figure in brackets indicates maximum number of
eetings in the period in which the individual was a Board member or
mittee member.

BREFREDEFALRZERBEFEEENREER
SERABENTR BIIAZHFEZALER
EXEeNBAZEENEHANZRESEHEHE -

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Full Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings

2REES EREES FMWEES REZEES

L 23 o238 a3

EEHE
~ Executive Directors HITEE
M. Chim Kim Lun Ricky ERl&tE
Mr. Law Fei Shing W E

Independent non-executive @ B HFHITEE

Directors
Mr. Au Kwok Yee Benjamin BB 2 S
Ms. Lau Siu Ngor 2/ A+

' Mr. Lum Pak Sum MIAFR L £

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board has adopted and
complied with the code provisions of the CG Codes in so far they are
applicable except for the following deviations.
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TEERKRE

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (continued)

CG Codes provision A.1.1, it stipulates that the Board should meet
regularly and board meeting should be held at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the year, only two regular
board meetings were held to review and discuss the annual and
interim results. The Company does not announce its quarterly results
and hence does not consider the holding of quarterly meetings as
necessary.

CG Codes provision A.2.1, it stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr.
Tang Kuan Chien at the meeting of the board of directors of the
Company held on 2 November 2009, he ceased to be chairman, chief
executive officer, executive director and authorised representative of
the Company with effect from 2 November 2009. The Company is
still looking for suitable candidates to fill the vacancies of chairman
and chief executive officer as soon as practicable and further
announcement will be made by the Company upon fulfillment of those
requirements under the Listing Rules.

CG Codes provision E.1.2, it stipulates that the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the
Company. The chairman did not attend the 2011 AGM due to the
chairman is vacated. An executive director had chaired the 2011 AGM
and answered questions from the shareholders.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Codes as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules to ensure that there are formal and transparent
procedures for setting policies on the remuneration of Directors and
senior management. The remuneration committee currently comprises
Ms. Lau Siu Ngor and Mr. Lum Pak Sum. The remuneration committee
is chaired by Mr. Lum Pak Sum.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, one remuneration committee
meeting was held to review the remuneration package of the Board
members.
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NATION COMMITTEE

pany has set up a nomination committee with written terms
reference in compliance with the CG Codes as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules to ensure fair and transparent procedures for
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors to the Board. The
nomination committee currently comprises Ms. Lau Siu Ngor and Mr.
um Pak Sum. The nomination committee is chaired by Mr. Lum Pak
um.

ring the year ended 31 March 2012, one nomination committee
meeting was held. At present, the nomination committee is looking for
suitable chief executive officer and chairman of the Company to fulfill
the CG Codes provision A.2.1 requirement.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee currently comprises Mr. Au Kwok Yee Benjamin,
Ms. Lau Siu Ngor and Mr. Lum Pak Sum. The audit committee is
chaired by Ms. Lau Siu Ngor.

The principal duties of the audit committee are considered significant

"’ accounting policies used to prepare the financial statements, and any
changes to them, and significant estimates or judgments on which the
financial statements have been based, taking the external auditors’
views into consideration, consider the clarity and completeness of
the disclosures in the financial statements. During the year ended 31
March 2012, two audit committee meetings were held, reviewing the
financial reporting matters of the Group. The terms of reference of
the audit committee are consistent with the terms set out in relevant
section of the CG Codes.

All the members of the audit committee are confirmed to be
independence with reference to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The audit committee provides supervision on the internal control

system of the Group and reports to the Board on any material issues,
and makes recommendations to the Board.
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TEERERE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2012.

To comply with the CG Codes provisions A.6.4, the Company has also
established and adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate the dealings
in the securities of the Company by certain employees of the Group
who are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2012. In preparing the financial statement, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and
have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis. Respective
responsibilities of the Directors and the external auditors to the
shareholders are set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on
pages 32 to 33 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, Morison Heng CPA was appointed as the external
auditors of the Company. Morison Heng CPA has provided audit
services to the Group in respect of 2012 financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries at the fee of HK$580,000. Non-auditing
service has not been rendered.
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is responsible for the establishing and maintaining a sound
internal control within the Group. However, such as system
d to manage various risks of the Group within certain
ptable risk level, rather than complete the elimination of the risk
f failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group.

current Board has already commenced as assessment and review of
internal control system of the Company and will take appropriate
n to maintain an adequate internal control system to safeguard
S holders’ investments and the Company’s assets, and review the
effectiveness of such on an annual basis through the audit committee.

- COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group strives to disclose relevant information on its activities
to shareholders in an open and timely manner. Communication is
achieved through:

(1) The Company’s annual and interim reports which have been
enhanced to present a balance, clear and comprehensive

assessment of the Group position and prospects.

(2) Notices of annual and other general meetings and
accompanying explanatory materials.

Announcement releases on major transaction.

Disclosures to the Stock Exchange and relevant regulatory
bodies.

(5) Response to inquiries from shareholders by Directors during the
Annual General Meeting.
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TEERKRE

CONSTRUCTIVE USE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The relations with shareholders should be maintained through
constructive use of Annual General Meeting. We are encouraging
shareholders to attend at the Annual General Meeting, giving
shareholders an opportunity to ask questions and to hear about the
Company during the meeting and an opportunity to use their vote and
greater openness in voting procedures at the Annual General Meeting.
Our executive Directors and responsible person of audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee will answer
the questions raised by the shareholders. Annual report and related
papers are post to shareholders for their consideration at least 20 clear
business days prior to the Annual General Meeting. Annual General
Meeting proceedings are continually reviewed in the light of corporate
governance best practices.
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pendent Auditor’s Report
BB EHRES

¢ MORISON HENG

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BESTWAY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
BREERZRARAR

- (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bestway
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 80, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2012, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBMEES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2012,
and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Morison Heng
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 June 2012
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ted Statement of Comprehensive Income

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E——F
B 5% FER FET
W 3= 7 1,384 1,855
$HE A (1,313) (1,754)
EF 71 101
H At A 8 1 2
inistrative expenses THAX (4,155) (4,043)
r operating expenses, net HE g Em 388 (3) (21)
ce costs B 7% AR AR 9 (786) (1,616)
ment loss recognised in respect R 2 B AR EEE
of mining rights 17 - (265,473)
 Loss before taxation BRBL AT 18 (4,872) (271,050)
Taxation BB 10 - 66,368
Loss for the year FEEBR 11 (4,872) (204,682)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hith2mE (BAxX) A
income
Exchange difference arising on translation & E AL 2 € H =% (122) 196
Total comprehensive expenses FE2HMAXERE
for the year (4,994) (204,486)
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic AR (0.17 HK cents#{ll) | (9.43 HK centsi{ll)
Diluted e N/AFE A N/AT i F

34 Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B RS AR O R Ak

At31 March202 R=ZE—=—F=F=+—H

Notes
—E-—fF
B 5 FHT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER AL 15 208
Exploration and evaluation assets PR R HEE 16 2,546
Mining rights RuERE 17 735,657
738,411
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B 5 EWERR 18 878
Deposits, prepayments and other e BEFIERAAM
receivables FE U SRR 858
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBERS 19 1,792
3,528 8,049
Current liabilities FEaE
Trade and bills payables ERE SRR RER 20 832 1,262
Other payables and accruals H M FE T BR A R FE RT FRIE 3,240 3,520
Promissory notes LR 21 20,000 =
24,072 4,782
Net current (liabilities)/assets hE(EE) EEFE (20,544) 3,267
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 717,867 742,075
BREBRERERAT — T —FF#H
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d Statement of Financial Position

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E——F
Wist FHET FET
liabilities ERBERE
A H R IE 21 = 19,214
R BAEE 22 163,913 163,913
163,913 183,127
EEFRE 553,954 558,948
BEREHE
f& A 23 32,336 323,357
) 26 521,618 235,591
tal equity R 553,954 558,948

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 80 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
22 June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHIM Kim Lun Ricky
DIRECTOR
EE
EalE

Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2012

E2_T—

“HEZA=+—-BLFE

Exchange

Share Share Contributed fluctuation
capital premium surplus reserve
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B R4 EE BNRSN EXRIFEE
THT FTET THT T
At 1 April 2010 RZZE-ZSFMA—H 323,357 423,048 52,743 79 (35,793)
Loss for the year FEER = 2 = - (204,682)
Exchange difference arising BREEEVERES
on translation - - - 196 -
Total comprehensive expenses FEZERZAE
for the year - - - 196 (204,682)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——&
—A=+—H 323,357 423,048 52,743 275 (240,475)
Loss for the year FEER - - = = (4,872) (4,872)
Exchange difference arising on HMEEEVERES
translation - - - (122) - (122)
|
Total comprehensive expenses FEZERZAE
for the year - - - (122) (4,872) (4,994)
Capital reduction (note 23(a)) FRZBIR (Fi3E23(a)) (291,021) 291,021 = = = -
At 31 March 2012 RZE-_F
=A=+-H 32,336 714,069 52,743 153 (245,347) 553,954
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RERER

lidated Statement of Cash Flows

ended 31 March 2012 HBE-ZT——-F=A=+—HILHFE

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E——F
FER FET
Cash flows from operating activities ZE&XKREFRE
Loss for the year FEERE (4,872) (204,682)
Adjustments for: ATy EIE
Income tax FRi5 %t = (66,368)
Depreciation e 76 75
Finance costs B 75 AR AR 786 1,616
Impairment loss recognised R CERREEIS
in respect of mining rights - 265,473
Interest income MEHKA (1) (2)
Operating cash flows before EEEERHAZ
movements in working capital RERESRKE (4,011) (3,888)
Decrease in trade receivables H 5 e YR FORL 445 4,268
Increase in deposits, prepayments and e ENFIER
other receivables HAh JE W R IB N (463) (122)
Decrease in trade and bills payables ENESEREZRRD (430) (3,893)
(Decrease)/Increase in other EMENBERARERIE
payables and accruals CRA) /48 (280) 1,924
Cash used in operations REFAZERS (4,739) (1,711)
Interest received B E 1 2
Interest paid B E = (9)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEXEFAZRESFE (4,738) (1,718)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBFIAZRERE
Addition of exploration and iR LA EEE N
evaluation assets - (1,681)
Net cash used in investing activities BREZFEFMAZRESFE = (1,681)
Cash flows from financing activities FEFHREHKE
Repayment of promissory notes BB A ER - (1,000)
Net cash used in financing activities RIEFEFMAZRESFE = (1,000)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRERBELER
equivalents WO FE (4,738) (4,399)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzREeRERARELER
beginning of the year 6,331 10,871
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — HMNETE R &) v & 199 (141)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZ2ESRERRE
of the year, represented by bank EHE ERITEHERS
balances and cash 1,792 6,331
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

GENERAL

Bestway International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the
registered office of the Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of
business is located at Room 1102C, 11/F, Tower 1, Admiralty
Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is engaged in investment holding and trading of
cotton yarn. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 30.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration to
the future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that as
of 31 March 2012, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$20,544,000. The directors are of the
opinion that, taking into consideration of the net proceeds of
approximately HK$24,400,000 upon the completion of new
shares placing on 16 April 2012 (details of which are set out
in note 31), the Group has sufficient working capital for its
present requirements for the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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LICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
G KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
NDARDS (“HKFRSs")

current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
HKAS 24 (Revised)

Related Party Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

ER#HITREEITER
WREEQ ([BEEMKER
all) )

REB W AR IRFEMA TS BME HR
M2 BB ERE 2R

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets’

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities*
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS
9 and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements*

Joint Arrangements*

Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities?
Fair Value Measurements*

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income3
Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets?
Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities®
Employee Benefits*

Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine*

BB WwE 2L WE-MBEE
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T E S

nded 31 March 2012 H#E=-ZT——F=A=+—HILtFE

PPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
TANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

F Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

The directors anticipate that the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposal of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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nded 31 March 2012 H#E=-ZT——F=A=+—HILtFE

IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
over their useful lives, using the straight-line method at the
following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures, equipment 3 to 5 years
and motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between

"‘ the sales proceeds to the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the expenditures
incurred in the search for natural resources as well as the
determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
mining rights. These assets are assessed for impairment before
reclassification, and any impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Mining rights
are amortised using the units of production method based on
the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

reign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets

" that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
}' period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs
Payments to retirement benefit plans and government-managed
retirement benefits schemes are recognised as an expense

when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. If the recoverable amount of an asset
or a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or the
cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ancial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that from an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012

the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEARETEEK (&)

B TE @)
HHEE

MBEESBRERKEKKIE A A
FEEZHHEENR S AR LKL
R-BEEERARRBRAKTIZED
AUZHBEARKEEZMBEEERE -

ERFIE %

BERMEE-RBIAERBHRES TR
ZHEHEEAAR BN BWAZTE B
BRAIR T IRER T A2 TRt F B 8E
fA (408 ) A 2 R BE 3R b R R R IR Z
e (BRBRERNFAKSD ZRE
ERRENRBKRER RHMAREAM
HESNE) ENTERZREFEZF
% o

BEBTAEZBATIRERN KEERER -

B R EWHE

B YRR R A B E 5 A B E R
VEERTHBEINTEMBEE-R
RREBAE(BREZRBUER EE
R E A FE MR TR A R IRIT 8 3R 2 ) T
AR % M) =ROK 422 8 3 B OB R (B AT

=
s °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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._-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the

asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original

. A R
- effective interest rate.
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.
-

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an equity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, accruals
and other payables and promissory notes) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers or retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, management has made various estimates
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment on mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets

Mining rights and exploration and evaluation assets are
assessed for impairment when facts and circumstances suggest
the carrying amount may exceed its recoverable amount. The
directors of the Company exercise their judgment in estimating
the recoverable amount with reference to a discounted cash
flow analysis. Where the recoverable amount is less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Useful lives of mining rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
for its mining rights based on the proven and probable reserves.
However, the mining rights were granted for terms of certain
years. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group will be able to continuously renew the mining rights and
the business licences of the respective mining subsidiaries at
minimal charges. Accordingly, the Group has used the proven
and probable reserves as a basis of estimation for the useful
lives of its mining rights.
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B8 3 Y EEART L A 2 R BRR
ERED A LB ARRE 2 A
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5 & M &

ended 31 March 2012 BEZE-ZFT——F=A=+—HIFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Useful lives of mining rights (continued)

Amortisation rates are determined based on estimated proven
and probable mine reserve volume with reference to the
independent technical assessment report. The estimates involve
subjective judgements in developing such information and have
taken into account the recent production and the technical
information about each mine. The capitalised cost of mining
rights are amortised using the units of production method. Any
change to the estimated proven and probable mine reserves
will affect the amortisation charge of those mining rights.
Management will reassess the useful lives whenever the ability
to renew the mining rights and business licences is changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segment based on the
internal reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
(the “CODM") in order to allocate resources and to assess
segment performance.

All of the Group’s activities are engaged in the trading of
cotton yarn business. On 31 December 2009, the Group
completed its acquisitions of entire interest in mining
companies established in the Mongolia and henceforth became
engaged in the mining business. However, no active operation
took place between the date of acquisition and the end of the
reporting period. Therefore, the Group’s CODM considers there
to be only one operating segment under the requirements of
HKFRS 8.

No geographical segment analysis is provided as over 90% of
the Group's revenue and contribution to results are derived
from the PRC/Mongolia (including Hong Kong) and substantial
amount of the Group’s assets and liabilities are located in the
PRC/Mongolia.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, revenue from a customer
of the Group amounting HK$1,384,305 had accounted for over

10% of the Group's total revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, revenue from two
customers of the Group amounting to HK$1,323,000 and
HK$532,000 had individually accounted for over 10% of the

Group's total revenue.

DEER (#)

BE-—ZT—=—£=A=+ H
AAREE—REFEZWE A,
L EAEBEBKEEI10%A Lo

H#E2 T ——F= =15
REAEERMEZRE 2 ks 5l
1,323,0005% 7T }532,0007% 7t * {@& Bl 45
EEBKEE10%A Lo

7. REVENUE 7. WHE
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WK RERBESTNEZMERY
allowances for returns and trade discounts. Revenue recognised BEFE - RNFABRZWEPAT
during the year is as follows:
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—F —T——%F
FET FH&T
Sales of goods HEE m 1,384 1,855
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HA
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-C-F = ——4F
FHERT T
Bank interest income RATA B A 1 2 ;
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MBERA
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B—_—f —F——fF
FET FHET
Interest on promissory notes (note 21) AAERZFE (H5E21) 786 1,616
10. TAXATION 10. HiE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e--% —z——%
FHERT T
Deferred taxation (note 22) RIERIIE (MFE22)
— current year G i = (66,368)
BREBERERAT —Z—-—£5% 57



T E S

AXATION (continued)

no assessable profit for the year (2011: Nil).

o Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided as the Group had

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

nded 31 March 2012 HE=-ZT——F=A=+—HILFE

o the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. ®IE (&)

MRAEBEFALERRT G N B

BERBENERELEE (ZF——%F:

&) e

FERARRBEE2EARARRKZEE
ZHERWT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——fF —E——F
FHERT FHT
Loss before taxation FrEL R E 1B (4,872) (271,050)
Tax at the applicable income tax rate RERAMEREAE 2HIE (804) (44,723)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAIHRAX 2 BB E
for tax purpose 281 535
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBMEBE B B2 523 391
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR AR BIAKEE
not recognised - (6)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries REMADEEREE 2
'._ operating in other jurisdiction B ARz NRBE & - (22,565)
Taxation BIE - (66,368)

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

11. FEBE

FEBBRCAR (A THRHRERKE

By
2012 2011
HK$"000 HK$'000
—E-—C=F —E-—fF
FERT FET
Auditor’s remuneration % BRI B & 580 565
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAK 1,313 1,754
Depreciation (note 15) e (KsE15) 76 75
Rental paid under operating lease EfEEHERS 422 63
Employee benefits expense (excluding EERNAX (TEF
directors’ emoluments — note 12) BEEZME—MHiE12)
Wages and salaries ITERF & 457 463
Pension scheme contributions RIS EFEIH R 54 79
Net exchange (gain)/loss* B (W) /Eie R (6) 12
i Included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face of the * FAGEEEBATRRA [HALL

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 12. EEME

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2011: B SENREML (ZF——
seven) directors were as follows: ZEEMenT
2012 —B——F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e EH
we REWER BIKS AR
FERT FHET FET
Executive directors: WITESE:
Mr. Chim Kim Lun Ricky ERl&ELtE 120 - 6
Mr. Law Fei Shing B 360 - 12 372
480 - 18 498

Independent non-executive B IEFHITE F ¢

directors:
Mr. Au Kwok Yee Benjamin B{EI 2 %4 80 - - 80
Ms. Lau Siu Ngor N e 80 - - 80
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MR E 80 - - 80
240 - - 240
Total @at 720 - 18 738
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T E S

arch 2012 BE—ZE——F#=A=1+—HIEE

ECTORS" EMOLUMENTS (continued)

the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. EEME @)

—E——F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2 RS EE
e REWEF #HR ARk
FHET FAET FHET FHET
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Chim Kim Lun Ricky ERl&ETE 120 - 6 126
Mr. Law Fei Shing FEIBYL ST A 360 - 12 372
Mr. Sun Danny' Sun Danny4t 4! - - - -
Ms. Yang Lee' Yang LeeZ t' 150 - - 150
630 - 18 648
Independent non-executive YB3 JFHITE =
directors:
Mr. Au Kwok Yee Benjamin  [BIE %& 4& 80 - - 80
Ms. Lau Siu Ngor 2l/hg 2+ 80 - - 80
Mr. Lum Pak Sum MR EE 80 - - 80
240 - - 240
Total wEt 870 - 18 888
1 Resigned on 24 September 2010 1 N-E-FEFNA-F+UHEE
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRTESESEHESR B NETMAEE Z
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2011: Nil). T (T ——F:M|m) o
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. AV ERESHFMES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2011: three) directors, details of whose emoluments
are set out in note 12 above. Details of the emoluments of
the remaining one (2011: two) non-directors, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

FR AfusasMEERENMG (ZF
——F =) EF BEZHEFEERN
EXHEFER - BT (ZE——F W
) EEERFTMEERFAZMEFF
BT :

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——fF —E——F

FExT FAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEVET 285 240
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIMH R 12 12
297 252
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The emoluments of the one (2011: two) non-directors, highest
paid employees fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors of the Company or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2011: Nil).

14. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13.

14.

TfUBEHMES

— L (ZF——F W) IFE
EBE& 2B <ENRZ%1,000,00
L7

FR-AKEHERRSIANRREFKS
fA] FL07 &% = ¥ B A £ 00 A AS &2 B 3k {f
BB 2 78 (B T A 1 S EARIR (=
——F &)

BREE

RAREE A (S GREAFIBRDIRAT
B E

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——fF i =
FET FET
Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable to the owners BT EESRENEIE 2
of the Company for the purpose of basic KArHEBAEBEFESE ‘1
loss per share (4,872) (204,682)
2012 2011
'000 '000
—E——fF —E——F i
TR i ‘
l.'llr
Number of shares BRHHE '
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bt ESRELREIEZ
for the purpose of basic loss per share I3 % A T 19 R B 2,922,283 2,170,220

No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2012
and 2011 has been presented as there were no diluted
potential shares.

HRYEECEHGRN RBE_F——
FRZE——FZRA=T+—HIEFELE
2y eREEEE-

EREMERERAT —T- 4% 6]
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= M=t

15. ME - BERRKRE

Furniture,
fixture,
equipment and
motor vehicles

HK$'000
B BEERE-
RERSE
FHT

COST %S
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE-—TFEWA—H 358
Exchange realignment PE 5, & 53
At 31 March 2011 W-_ZT——H=ZA=+—H 411
Exchange realignment PE i & (42)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE—=—F#=H=+—H 369

DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—-ZFFMA—H 13
Charge for the year FERZ 75
Exchange realignment PE 5, & 9
At 31 March 2011 W-_ZT——H=ZA=+—H 97
Charge for the year FEMEZ 76
Exchange realignment PE H FH % (12)
At 31 March 2012 R-—E—=—F=HA=+—H 161

CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE—=—F=A=+—H 208
At 31 March 2011 W-_ZT——H=ZA=+—H 314
16. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 16. MIHFRFAHEE

HK$'000
FET

COST %S
At 1 April 2010 RZE—ZTFHA—H 863
Addition NE 1,681
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 293
At 31 March 2011 RZE—F=A=+—H 2,837
Exchange realignment [E 3, 8 B (291)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——#=A=+—8 2,546
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

17. MINING RIGHTS 17. RERE

COST R
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 RZE—ZTFHWMA—H"

—E——%=ZA=t—-HRk

—E-—fF=A=+—H 1,001,130
AMORTISATION e
At 1 April 2010 RZE—ZTFHHA—A
Impairment loss recognised B MRz R EEE 265,4
At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 R-BE——F=A=+—8x

—T——F=ZA=+—H 265,473
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 March 2012 RZTE—=—F=A=+—H 735,657
At 31 March 2011 R-—E—F=A=+—H 735,657

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining
activities in the location of Nogoonnuur Soum and Tsengel
Soum of Bayan-Ulgii Aimag in Mongolia, and have legal lives of
21 to 26 years, expiring in July 2031, March 2033, December
2035 and July 2036, respectively. The mining operating licenses
are issued by Mineral Resources and Petroleum Authority of
Mongolia and may be extended for two successive additional
periods of 20 years each. In the opinion of the directors, the
application for extension is procedural and the Group should be
able to renew its mining operation licenses at minimal charges,
until all the proven and probable minerals have been mined.

The mining rights are amortised using the units of production
method based on the proven and probable mineral reserves
under the assumption that the Group can renew the mining
rights indefinitely till all proven reserves have been mined.

During the year, the directors of the Company reassessed the
recoverable amount of the mining rights with reference to
the valuation performed by Messers. Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer and
determined that no impairment loss in respect of mining
rights was identified for the year ended 31 March 2012. The
recoverable amount of the mining rights was approximately
HK$791,076,000 based on value-in-use calculations and key
assumptions adopted including estimated mine reserve based
on technical assessment reports and the expectation for market
development.

REREITREEEERIZERIKESER
MEkERETETRBEES 2R AT
FHELP A+ —FE_+F R
—TE=—H+R ZTE==H=/H =%
—HEET_ARZZEZAFLAEm B
ERFRRASHEEER LKA REE
BEL - AEEESMN BIX20F 55
RE PEEHEETKREBRER BA
55 [ i ] 48 HRTR A= R R BR T B ZH & KK
N BEMBFRARMG 2 BEBERE
Bk

RERIRERARGABEEFRERE
B ERBMEREEFHE EHRE
SENERAESEREE BEEMARHA

FRN ARBEZLEBHLAERITEMN
BRI R EERARMEZME  Ef
REEZAREEGHE TETREZE-Z
——FZA=t+—BLEFEIRFHBEM
R 2 RERE FBEE 2Tl E S
#9791,076,0008 L H i ERBEZFE R
EEE MEMZ EZBEEE AT
HHREREEZ B BREREREMHEHE
R2EH-
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E RECEIVABLES

he Consolidated Financial Statements

18. EFEWERRR

The Group’s trading terms with its customers generally ranging
from 60 — 90 days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2012 2011

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E——fF —T——F

TEx FHET

Trade receivables Z S rEWERR 878 1,323

$§,"§I BEPARIYZEER BN T
0H =90 EI %’ Aiﬁﬁmﬁﬁffﬁﬂ‘@ﬁﬁm

H

g3

RI|BEHR B S RERTORRRBEHR
ZEREE DT

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E——fF —E——F
FERT FET

Within 30 days 30E A 878
31 to 60 days 31H&60H - 1,323
878 1,323

The Group's trade receivables balance are neither past due nor
impaired as at the reporting date. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company believe that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

19.

20.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The bank deposits carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rate.

Included in bank balances and cash are pledged bank deposits
of HK$869,000 at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$1,262,000) which
are pledged to a bank to secure short-term banking facilities of
the Group.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The aging analysis of the trade and bills payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is

198

20.

RITEBRERE

RITEH LB EBREAKE
RREHIAR=1EAKNAR
K RFRITERBRBATH

R-_E——F=A=+—8 8B7&
ReeEoERFRTUREAREE
HR1T{E B 2 B K IR 1717 7869,
T (=T ——%:1,262,000/# 7T ) °

BNEZRARREE

RBEHR REZAH2INZENES
BRRRERBRZREDITAT

as follows:
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-=F —T——F
FHxT FHBT
31 to 60 days 31HZ60H 832 -
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H - 1,262
832 1,262
BRERZRERAT —T— 5% 65
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22.

T E S

OMISSORY NOTES

ed 31 March 2012 BZE-—F——4=A=+—BILEfE

e movement of the promissory notes are set out as below:

the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. AREEE

AAZBE2BHHIIMT

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 April 2010 R-ZE-—ZTFMA—H 18,607
Interest charge (note 9) FMEER (MF9) 1,616
Interest payment BT 9)
Early repayment RATEE (1,000)
At 31 March 2011 RZE—F=A=+—H 19,214
Interest charge (note 9) FEBA (M) 786
At 31 March 2012 RZT——_F=A=+—H 20,000

The promissory notes carry a coupon interest rate of 1% per

ARARBZEBAMNERETF1% THR

annum and will be matured on 31 December 2012. On 18 April 2+ A=+—HBHHP- RN =

2012, the Group has fully settled the promissory notes with an
amount of HK$20,000,000 pursuant to an early redemption
proposal offered by the holder of promissory notes.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and

22, EEBEEE

— WA+ NR KNEBEREALE
BEAARHZERELNZZEZH
A /420,000,000 7T 2 # 3, 21 -

+ 3=
B

REERBEEFEHAZELHERARG

movements thereof during the current and prior years: REFHWT :
Fair value
adjustment on
mining rights
R 2
ATFEAE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZFFMA—H 230,281
Credit to profit or loss (note) A (M) (66,368)
At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012 RZTE——F=A=+—HK
—2——-F=A=+—H 163,913

Note:  This represents the deferred tax assets recognised in relation to
impairment loss on mining rights as set out in note 17.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$39,143,000 (2011:
HK$58,451,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
estimated tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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23.

SHARE CAPITAL 23.
Number of shares
Notes ‘000
REEHE
Bt 5 F AR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares TiER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZZE-—ZEFOA—-—BR
at 1 April 2010 and 31 March —E——F=A=1+—H
2011 Z BIREECAB T
=R 17,283,333
Capital reorganisation A% A E 48 (a) 155,550,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 RN-ZE——F=A=+—H
each at 31 March 2012 ZEREE0.0VEITLZ
T 172,833,333 1,728,333
Preference shares EER
Preference shares of HK$0.1 R-ZE—ZTFNMA—HN
each at 1 April 2010 and 31 —E——F=A=+—H
March 2011 ZBREBETZ
Bk 2,716,667 271,667
Capital reorganisation N (a) 24,450,000 =
Preference shares of HK$0.01 RNZE——F=A=+—H
each at 31 March 2012 ZER@EEE LY
Bk 27,166,667 271,667
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Ordinary shares LBAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZE-ZFTEFMNA—-—BZ
at 1 April 2010 SREECIBITZ
ERE 1,512,896 151,290
Conversion of convertible BER AR R B ST iR
preference shares (b) 1,156,667 115,667
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R-E——F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2011 Z EBIREECAE T
=i 2,669,563 266,957
Conversion of convertible B3R AR R B SR R
preference shares (b) 564,000 56,400
Capital reduction % 7N Hl R (a) = (291,021)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 R-TE——H#=F=+—H
each at 31 March 2012 ZBIRmE{EC.0B T
Bk 3,233,563 32,336
BREBERERAT —Z——F5% 67
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" Preference shares of HK$0.01

PITAL (continued) 23. B& (@)
Number of shares Amount
Notes ‘000 HK$'000
BRHEA &8
Mt 3E T FHT
nce shares B
reference shares of HK$0.1 RZE—ZFWMA—AHZ
each at 1 April 2010 FR®EENETZ
BERR 1,720,667 172,067
Conversion of convertible a2t A R AR B ST R

preference shares (b) (1,156,667) (115,667)

Preference shares of HK$0.1 R-E——F=A=+—H

each at 31 March 2011 ZFREE BT Z
BER 564,000 56,400
Conversion of convertible HE A 0] 0 AR 48 S A%

preference shares (b) (564,000) (56,400)

WZE—=—F=A=+—H

each at 31 March 2012 ZERmEETLY
BER - -
#Er 3,233,563 32,336

Total
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23. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a) Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting held on 8 December
2011, each authorised ordinary share and preference share
of HK$0.1 were subdivided into 10 ordinary shares and 10
preference shares of HK$0.01 each, respectively. Furthermore,
the issued share capital was reduced by canceling paid up
capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on each ordinary share
of HK$0.1. The credit arising from capital reduction was
transferred to share premium account.

(b) During the year, 564,000,000 ordinary shares (2011:
1,156,666,667 ordinary shares) of HK$0.1 each were issued
pursuant to the exercise of the convertible preference shares at
a conversion price of HK$0.3 per share.

The major terms of the above mentioned convertible preference
shares are set out below:

Holder of each convertible preference share shall have the same
entitlement to dividend as holder of the number of ordinary
shares into which such convertible preference shares may be
converted upon exercise of conversion rights attached thereto.

The convertible preference shares are convertible at the
option of the holder at any time after the date on which the
convertible preference share is allotted and issued.

No conversion right attaching to the convertible preference
shares may be exercised, to the extent that following such
exercise, the relevant holder convertible preference shares and
parties acting in concert with it, taken together, will directly or
indirectly, control or be interested in 30% or more of the entire
issued shares (or in such lower percentage as may from time to
time be specified in the Takeovers Code as being the level for
triggering a mandatory general offer. No holders of convertible
preference shares shall exercise the conversion right attached
to any convertible preference shares held by such holder(s) of
preference shares if immediately after such conversion, the
public float of the shares falls below the minimum public float
requirements stipulated under the Listing Rules or as required
by the Stock Exchange.

23. BA& (@)

(a) BREBERARARER=_ZE——F+=7)
AETZBRRENARS BB FhbR
FEE - GREE BT AT EER &
BERE D RIFAASREEC.01ET
Z 108% 38 A K 10R% 8 S A% = 1tk 51 »
BOTRADEBEHETREE1E
2 BB 20.097% ST AUR IR A it T A
B BRAEDR AL 2 ERRE B RS
10 B AR ©

(b) FA AR IR AR E SRR S AR0.378 78
Z IR BT L - B #17564,000,000
(=T ——4%:1,156,666,667%) &
REBE BT L@

EA TR B e A 2 E R ARRESIANT

BRAUBRRELEREEAGERR K

B BT 0 AT 4 AR B S AR B 7 2 SR R A ”1
RAEMARRELSRAIESRZ ERREE

2B ARER -

FAEAEER AR REL R RET
BHREMKREBRTRREER-

il AT {65 A #2 IR (B SR AR B A5 2 MR A 1%
HEA TR BRI A A REE —BITE)
AL AT BEESBEETEH S EE 2B
BITAR930% 3k LA | (3 Uk B <F RIS B P
BEmERG2EMEREEZ BERKS
SLb) - BIRNAIATE B IR AR HE o (iR B EE
AT RE R IRITE ATTEEEE Z M/ A]
BRBEARWE 2 RBEE BROZAR
FREERBE EMRGTASBRME
K HRBEABRFHRERT B BAIRR
BEBRBE ATSITES BIRRE-

BRERERERAT —ZT——#43% 69
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HARE CAPITAL (continued)

o conversion rights attaching to the convertible preference
shares may be exercised by any holders of convertible
preference shares who is a restricted holder, i.e. a holder of
the convertible preference shares who is a resident or national
of any jurisdiction other than Hong Kong under the laws and
regulations of which an exercise of conversion rights by such
holder of the convertible preference shares or the performance
by the Company of the obligations expressed to be assumed by
it under the Bye-laws or the allotment and issue and holding of
the conversion shares cannot be carried out lawfully or cannot
be carried out lawfully without the Company first having to
take certain actions in such jurisdiction.

Where any convertible preference share is intended to be
transferred to a connected person of the Company (other than
the associates of the transferring holder of the convertible
preference shares), such transfer shall comply with the
requirements under the Listing Rules and/or requirements
imposed by the Stock Exchange (if any).

The convertible preference shares rank (i) in priority to the
ordinary shares of the Company and any other shares of
the Company as to return of capital, and (ii) pari passu with
ordinary shares of the Company as to dividends.

On winding up of the Company, the holder of the convertible
preference shares shall be entitled to the return of capital on
the basis of the value of HK$0.30 attributed to each convertible
preference share.

Holders of the convertible preference shares (in their capacity
as such) will not be permitted to attend or vote at meetings of
the Company, unless a resolution is proposed to vary the rights
of holders of the convertible preference shares or a resolution is
proposed for the winding up of the Company.

The convertible preference shares are not listed on any stock
exchange.
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24.

—F=A=1+—HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of shareholders held on 19
August 2003, a new share option scheme, details of which
appeared in a circular to shareholders of 25 July 2003, was
approved.

On 25 September 2006, the Company has granted
281,000,000 share options to directors and employees at
exercise price of HK$0.035 per share.

On 14 December 2006, the Company passed a resolution of
capital reorganisation by the shareholders at the special general
meeting involving:

- the capital reduction involves a reduction in the nominal
value of each existing share in issue of HK$0.01 to
HK$0.005;

- the share consolidation will be implemented whereby
20 existing shares of HK$0.005 each in the issued or
unissued share capital of the Company resulting from
the capital reduction will be consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10.

As a result, the share options exercise price need to be
consolidated at HK$0.70 per share and the number of share
options granted need to be consolidated to 14,050,000 share
options on 15 December 2006.

All the share options granted were expired and no outstanding
share options remained for the years ended 31 March 2012 and
31 March 2011.

24,

B ESHE

R-EZ=F\A+hBB]
A b F R 8 (Ea
=E LA+ REARRES
EO

R-_ZZNFALA-_T+HB XAF
TEEERSETRTEER
281,000,00017 &5 A& 2 o

R-ZEZXE+-_F+WNE K2R
RRBRRERAS @A —ARAEHER
BR BRI R:

—  BABR SRESREOBTES
A% 17 2 T {8 1 0.017 7T % 2 0.005
BT

= BEITRMDE M B ARAE
BT ARBEITARZAN A A R AR FT
EX 2520 FREE0.0058 T
ZHRBBRGEE M A—REE.10
B2 ARG -

Ay R=ZEEXF+_A+HHB BR
BZITHEEAAHATR0.70E T MAT
R EERES B EE 0t /514,050,0001
& # o

REE-_E——-—F=ZA=+—HEK=_F
——F®=ZA=Z+—HLFE FTEEES
BT Em - B & RIT(EBAE -

ERERERERATN —T- 4% 71



T E S

E COMPANY

arch 2012 BE—ZE——F#=A=1+—HIEE

TEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. KR FzHBRRFR

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=EF-=F —F—F
B 5 FHET FET
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRRZIEE - -
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables =N A 878 1,323
Deposits and prepayments Re RIBNFIE 843 379
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U BT B A A) 2 FIE 736,180 735,670
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LR 1,237 5,773
739,138 743,145
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables EREZERRER 832 1,262
Other payables and accruals H R &
FE &R IA 1,711 1,613
Amount due to a subsidiary B —HEHEARZ
IE 3,308 3,308
5,851 6,183
Net current assets REBEEFE 733,287 736,962
Net assets EEFE 733,287 736,962
Capital and reserves ERXRFHE
Share capital N 23 32,336 323,357
Reserves i 26 700,951 413,605
Total equity ERAHE 733,287 736,962
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

26. RESERVES 26. #1E

(a)

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in KAZ3 e

equity.

Contributed surplus BEHze

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result AEBZEHRBBR AR

of the Group reorganisation prior to its public listing on
2 October 1995 and represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the former holding

(a) F%HE

KEE HRSERE
BEFE BDERES

—NMNEF+AZBRFRLETAE
TRBEEAMESE - THIRRBAS
BEAMBBAEERIERARLZ

company of the Group acquired pursuant to the Group

BethEE - 18 R R T 1T

reorganisation, over the nominal value of the shares of ARRROEEZ ZF -
the Company issued in exchange therefore.
(b) The Company (b) A2FH
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB EE BHRH RitEE @t
FHT FHT FET FExT
At 1 April 2010 RZZE—ZTFMA—H 423,048 159,393 (141,072) 441,369
Loss for the year FAEE - = (27,764) (27,764)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZZT——F
ZA=+—H 423,048 159,393 (168,836) 413,605
Loss for the year FEREE - - (3,675) (3,675)
Capital reduction B AR (KT 3E23(a))
(note 23(a)) 291,021 - - 291,021
At 31 March 2012 RZE—ZF
ZA=+—H 714,069 159,393 (172,511) 700,951
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PITAL MANAGEMENT 27. EXER
e Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in AEEETEREHERAUBRASERNSELE
"Group will be able to continue as a going concern while ARELE RRTERE(aERER
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation ZFEmARRFIRESE R RNEREE
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy BRBEAFER-
remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, comprising REBZEAREBEOREEL (BREEALE
promissory notes, and equity attributable to owners of the BIURARAGHA ARELER (BEE
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. BITIRAREEE)
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on RABESZHERNEREB -ERILE
a continues basis. As part of this review, the directors consider Bez—8mn EFERERKARAELE
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of AMEXRBEZ B FEEBREBEESZ
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group B BABTHR FEESNERR
will balance its overall capital structure through the new shares EEBmM T EHARBERERE-
issues, the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. MIEITH
" (i) Categories of financial instruments (i) MBEIAESE
2012 2011
HK$000 HK$'000
—2—-F —F——F
FET FET
E Financial assets: BBEE:
' Loans and receivables B B 3,528 8,049
Financial liabilities: BkaE:
Amortised cost B3 AR 24,072 23,996
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. MBI A @)

(i)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals and promissory notes. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Currency risk management

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through transactions that is denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relates. The Group currently does not have
a hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises. No sensitivity analysis was performed as the
management considers the amount is insignificant.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate promissory notes. The Group
currently does not have a hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant fixed-rate borrowing should
the need arise. No sensitivity analysis was performed as
the management considers the amount is insignificant.

(i)

MERAREEZAR

FERITENBIABRESE
WRR - & & H Al R URIR R
THRHEERES EBNEZRRRS
15 E A B BR R R B AT SRIR A
EAEE -MBTAFBERS
ZHIERE BB TA
Z B K AR 1kt 5 LR 2
FIWMT -EREEENRERELS
[ B PARER R B F2 8 0 SRER 1R
B2

TEEE
EEEREE

REBZINERE R EERE AEM
BEBZNREEBAIINEEETE
ZX 5 B Al AR E Y EH K
R A EREERIINERAR - I
BERTERZEBEIHERINEE
R-ARNEEERRZEBLIE
KB RETHEERE D

T 2 b & 2E

AEERTEAREZEEMEATA
FEFERR B A ANEEIE
HPBE AW BEEERF =X
Bk UEEEREREELHAE
AEBEE - HREEERA%S
B TREKX MW RETHERED
AT e

BRERERERAT —ZT——#4%m /5
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INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk management

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as at 31 March 2012 is mainly from
one customer which accounted for 100% (2011:
one customer which accounted for 100%) of trade
receivables. The Group has closely monitored the
recoverability of trade receivables and taken effective
measures to ensure timely collection of outstanding
balances.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.
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28.

(i)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. BT A (®m)
Financial risk management objectives (i) BHEEAKREEEEZ
and policies (continued) (#%)
Liquidity risk management (Continued) HEHELEE (&)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRIRWE 2 & HRIERFFHN A&
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial EVTEM BB EZ AR B
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The ZRDBBRAEE A HENRES
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted &% HEmEE 2 9% 8 ERA
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest ReENERY - ZXBEFE
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The EMEZRESRE -
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted Less than Over 1 year Total Carrying
average 1 year or but less than  undiscounted amount
interest rate on demand 5 years cash flows at 31.3.2012
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZB-—=F
T DPR—F BB—F KEHERE =ZA=+-A
A= HRBEA BOIREE EEE ZIREE
% TR FTEx FExT FTExT
2012 —g_-&
Trade and bills payables ERESERREE - 832 - 832 832
Other payables and accruals — H A7 T 8R FU R Rt 5008 - 3,240 - 3,240 3,240
Promissory notes EALER 8.45 20,000 - 20,000 20,000
24,072 - 24,072 24,072
Weighted Less than Over 1 year Total Carrying 1
average 1 year or but less than undiscounted amount |
interest rate on demand 5 years cash flows at 31.3.2011
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZF——F
g PR—F HiR—F ABHRE =ZA=1+—H
Fj= sk iz A BELRRE mEBTE ZEHE
% FET FAT FHAT TR
2011 2
Trade and bills payables ERESERRER - 1,262 - 1,262 1,262
Other payables and accruals — H b 78 8R 7 B EAt 3008 - 3,520 = 3,520 3,520
Promissory notes ELER 8.45 = 20,600 20,600 19,214
4,782 20,600 25,382 23,996
BREBERERAR —Z——55% 77
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ANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. BT A m

) Fair value (iii) 2¥E
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities MBEERMBEEZ A TETIR
are determined in accordance with generally accepted BARTEEX ZRBRITBERESR
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis. EDMEE -
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RRBIEERR RireHBHE
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities PR BEERIBEBEZR
recognised in the consolidated financial statements HESEAEAFEBEE-

approximate to their fair values.

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS 29, REHNEAIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEBRR  AEBERBE U RELEEHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- AR TN EIH B 2 R R EARTE S ORI
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: S
2012 2011
HK$000 HK$'000
—E——fF —E——F
FET FHET
': Within one year —FR 912 -
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_FEFRF
(BEERME) 490 -
1,402 -
! Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the RETR U N RS AR E B B PN SR
' Group for its office premise. The lease typically runs for an TR e HYOBREN S AERE T
initial year of 2 years, with an option to renew the lease when RN E A RS S AL -

all terms are renegotiated.

78 Bestway International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2012 HZ T ——F=A=+—HItFE

SUBSIDIARIES

30. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

30.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2012 and 31 March 2011 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Issued share/paid-up

KRR -_E——F=A=
——F=A=+—HzZ=E=

BT

Percentage of equity

TEMBDAZE

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activitie
BRTRE/EH
Wi 2 B & SMAYL MRS HEMEX ARREEREESL  FEEH
Direct Indirect
EE &
Bestway Group International British Virgin Islands/ Us$1,100 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong

RBRAHE/BE 1,100% 7T 100 - REER

Tectron Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands us$1 100 - Investment holding
RBRAEE (Ep 100 - REEK

Prolific Rich Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100  Investment holding
EBRRHES (E - 100 ®REZK

Grand Shining Limited British Virgin Islands us$1 - 100 Investment holding
RBRAES (Ep - 100 REZER

Kainarwolfram LLC Republic of Mongolia US$100,000 - 100 Mining and exploitation of

natural resources

SHAME 100,000% 7T - 100 RERHGERAEZR

lkh Uuliin Erdenes LLC Republic of Mongolia US$100,000 - 100 Mining and exploitation of

natural resources
S e 100,000% 7T - 100 RBEHERAER
BREBZERERAT —T-—F8% 79
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ICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SIDIARIES (Continued)

e of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
d of the year or at any time during the year, except for
lectron Pacific Limited which has issued HK$20,000,000 of
promissory notes in which the Group has no interest.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 April 2012, the Company successfully completed a
placing of 500,000,000 new shares at a price of HK$0.05
per placing shares, with net proceeds of approximately
HK$24,400,000. Details of the placing were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement on 26 March 2012 and 16 April
2012 respectively.
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FTEMBRrEIZFHE @)

% Tectron Pacific Limited® % 17
20,000,000/ 7T 2 L R (R EERZ
EEBRPUEER)IN RERIFAML
AEFMSHBRARBEMNEHEES -

BEERR LRV ZARAMBERFTS
BAKBFRAZXEAERTE JBEX
AEBEEFEZIERD EFRA
HIEMHBAR CHEEEREHER
BRIUE -

BEMREE

RZTE—ZFMNA+ B RARFKITE
BRI RESERH0.058 T2 BRES
500,000,000 %% 5 « TS FIBF BN A
24,400,000 T BB E 2 FIBE KA
RRAIEBBS AT —=—F=RA=+/XH
RZZF-—ZFWA+RBZAMARE-
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